
Procurement Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 16 February 2022 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 26th January 2022  

 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

4   Matters arising  

 

 

5   Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

5a Request for Approval to Go Out to Tender - Installation of Hydropower 
Scheme at Charlestown Weir on the River Irwell as Part of the 
Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester Project - Harriet 

Harper  
 

(Pages 5 - 10) 

5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Rough Sleepers 
Accommodation Programme - Conversion of a Former Family Centre 
on Wingate Road, Little Hulton into Four 1 Bedroom Apartments - 

Konrad Magdzinski  
 

(Pages 11 - 16) 

5c Request for Approval to Go Out to Tender - Street Lighting Routine 
Cyclic Maintenance Contract - Paul Jackson  
 

(Pages 17 - 20) 

6   Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

7   Date and time of next meeting  
 

10:00am on Wednesday 2nd March 2022 in the Salford Suite, Civic 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA. 
 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316 
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 

Advisor 

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 



Procurement Board meeting held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road, 

Swinton, M27 5DA 

26th January 2022 

Meeting commenced at 10:00am 

Meeting ended at 10:37am 

Present in Person 
Councillors Hinds (in the chair), Merry and Youd. 

Attendance in Person 

Carol Eddleston Democratic Services 

Chris Hesketh  Head of Financial Management 

Anthony Hilton  Head of Strategic Procurement 

Gillian Holt  Principal Officer (Development) 
Dylan Vince  Project Manager Technical 

1. Apologies for Absence 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillor Kelly.  

2. Declarations of Interest 

Councillor Merry declared a personal interest in items 5(a) and 5(b) as a number of the units were to 

be disposed of to Dérive upon completion. He was nominated to Dérive by Salford City Council and 

had been appointed chair of the board. 

3. Minutes of Proceedings 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12th January 2022 were approved as a correct record. 

4. Matters Arising 
There were no matters arising. 

5. Decision Items – Part 1 – Open to the Public 

5(a) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Construction Phase of the Design and 

Build of 177 New Homes at Longshaw Drive, Little Hulton 

As a number of the units were to be disposed of to Dérive upon completion Councillor Merry 

declared a personal interest. He was nominated to Dérive by Salford City Council and had been 

appointed chair of the board. 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award the 

contract for the Constructor Partner for the construction phase of the design and build of 177 new 
homes at Longshaw Drive. 

The project was currently at RIBA stage 4 (final design stage) and all information was in place to 

enable the construction of the project to progress. There were some unresolved historic title defects 

on part of the site that currently impacted on the Council’s leasehold ownership and officers were 

continuing to progress to a conclusion. The remainder of the site was in the council’s full ownership 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



and an option was being explored with Crossfield Construction Ltd. to confirm whether works could 

be phased to develop the fully owned part of the site first with a subsequent development on the 

remaining part once the title defects were resolved. A delegated authority to officers to award the 

contract in phases up to the full amount of the project would enable the development to start as 

anticipated whilst ongoing title defects were being resolved. A contract would not be entered into in 

relation to the affected part of the site until these issues were resolved.  

On completion of the development the intention was for the majority of units within the scheme to 

be disposed of to Dérive with the majority for social and affordable housing but with some PRS units.  
The remaining units would be sold to private owners. 

The programme had been developed to achieve the delivery of contracts to meet the Brownfield 

and Homes England grant funding criteria and the necessary phased completion dates. Confirmation 

of the Homes England Grant was expected in January and contracts would not be completed until 

funding was in place. Officers were currently working to resolve a number of title issues on part of 

the site that currently impacted on the Council’s leasehold ownership . 

Members of the board acknowledged that Crossfield Construction Ltd’s signing up to the City 

Mayor’s Employment Standards Charter had been delayed due to a change in personnel but were 

disappointed at the lack of progress since July 2021 when Procurement Board had approved the 

company’s appointment as constructor partner. Members requested confirmation that the company 

already paid at least the Real Living Wage to all of its staff.  

Members noted that it was proposed that the Strategic Director Place would be delegated authority 

in conjunction with the Section 151 Officer to award the contract in phases and sought assurances 

around the risks associated with this project upon learning that Sefton Council had terminated a 

contract with Crossfield Construction Ltd in late 2021.  

Officers confirmed that the termination of this contract had been discussed with the contractor and 

full due diligence would be completed before a contract for the construction phase would be 
entered into. 

It was agreed that a report would be brought back to the next meeting to assure members of the 

board that the issues above had been fully explored to the satisfaction of the Strategic Director 
Place. 

RESOLVED, THAT: the City Mayor be recommended to approve: 

 the award of the contract to Crossfield Construction, to act as Construction Partner, for the 
construction phase of the design and build of 177 new homes at Longshaw Drive as outlined 
below:  

 the overall development budget of £36,064,440 – Contractor Costs £34,202,711 and Salford 
City Council costs £1,861,729 (for statutory costs, surveys and fees). 

 the title issues affecting part of the site and that a contract with Crossfield Ltd will not be 
entered into in relation to this section of the site until these matters have been resolved. 

 delegated authority to the Strategic Director of Place in conjunction with the Section 151 
officer to award the contract in phases up to the full amount of the project, subject to  

o confirmation that Crossfield Construction Ltd. is already paying at least the Real Living 
Wage to all employees, and  

Page 2



o provision of a report to the next meeting of the Procurement Board on possible risks. 

 

5(b) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Construction of 68 New Homes at the 

Former St Luke’s Church of England Primary School , Eccles New Road 

As a number of the units were to be disposed of to Dérive upon completion Councillor Merry 

declared a personal interest. He was nominated to Dérive by Salford City Council and had been 

appointed chair of the board. 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award the 

contract for the construction of 68 new homes at the former St Luke’s Church of England Primary 
School, Eccles New Road. 

The project was currently at RIBA stage 4 (final design stage) and all information was in place to 

enable the construction of the project to progress. Full ownership control of the site had not yet 

been secured. This was continuing to be progressed and monitored closely and the contract with 

G&J Seddon Ltd would not be entered into until full ownership was acquired. On completion of the 

development the intention was for the units to be disposed of; a proportion of units to Inspiring 

Housing and the remainder to Dérive, subject to successful applications for both organisations to 
become Registered Providers. 

Members of the board acknowledged that G&J Seddon Ltd had a longstanding successful working 

relationship with the council and was already signed up to the City Mayor’s Employment Standards 
Charter and was an Accredited Living Wage Employer. 

RESOLVED, THAT: the City Mayor be recommended to: 

 Approve the award of the contract to G&J Seddon Ltd, to act as Construction Partner, for the 
construction phase of the design and build of 68 new homes at the former St Luke’s Church 
of England Primary School. 

 Approve the overall development budget of £13,287,950 – Contractor Costs £12,837,554 
and Salford City Council costs £450,396 (for statutory costs, surveys and fees), and 

 Note that full ownership control of the site has not yet been secured and that a contract 
with G&J Seddon Ltd will not be entered into until the full ownership is obtained.  

5(c) Request for Approval - Contract Award – Construction of 45 New Homes at the 

Former Irwell Valley Campus off Blandford Road  

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award the 

contract for the construction of 45 new homes at the former Irwell Valley Campus off Blandford 
Road. 

The project was currently at RIBA stage 4 (final design stage) and all information was in place to 

enable the construction of the project to progress. On completion of the development the intention 

was for the units to be disposed of to the Broughton Trust subject to their successful application to 

become a Registered Provider. 

RESOLVED, THAT: the City Mayor be recommended to approve: 

Page 3



 the award of the contract to G&J Seddon Ltd, to act as Construction Partner, for the 
construction phase of the design and build of 45 new homes at the former Irwell Valley 
Campus off Blandford Road, and 

 the overall development budget of £8,720,943 – Contractor Costs £8,412,187 and Salford 
City Council costs £308,756 (for statutory costs, surveys and fees). 

 

 

 

Page 4



Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for the Place Directorate  

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
16th February 2022 

 

 
 

TITLE: Approval to go out to competition for a contractor to install the hydropower 
scheme at Charlestown Weir on the River Irwell as part of the Unlocking Clean 

Energy in Greater Manchester project (part funded by European Regional 
Development Fund).  
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Procurement Board grant authority for the procurement in accordance with the 

City Council’s Contract Procedure Rules through an open tender process of 
contractors to install the hydropower scheme at Charlestown Weir on the River 

Irwell.   

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to request approval to go out competition for the 

delivery of the abovementioned project through an open tender process. 

Salford City Council is seeking to install the hydropower scheme at Charlestown 
Weir on the River Irwell in order to increase local renewable energy generation and 

increase the flexibility of local energy supply as part of its contribution towards 
Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral city region by 2038.  

The purpose of ERDF funding is as the funding of last resort to bring forward 
schemes that would otherwise not be deliverable, in this case due to cost and/or 
payback taking too long to repay the Invest to Save funds. ERDF has been awarded 

to these installations to address this gap in funding for the proposed investments and 
ensure the City Council is able to deliver the installations. The project “Unlocking 

Clean Energy in Greater Manchester (UCEGM)” is led by the Energy Systems 
Catapult, with the consortium also including Stockport, Wigan, Rochdale and 
Manchester Councils. The three Salford City Council sites (Charlestown hydro, Little 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a



Hulton solar farm and solar car ports at Turnpike and Swinton Hall Road) are 
expected to produce about 2.5MW of electricity annually. 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
 

 Five year environment plan for Greater Manchester 

 City Mayor Briefing – 21st October 2019 and 28th September 2020 

 Property & Regen Briefing - 12th October 2020 & 21st July 2021. 

 
 

KEY DECISION: No 

 
 

DETAILS:  

Background 

The GM 5 Year Environment Plan sets out five key environmental challenges that 
threaten the future health and prosperity of our City Region and the vision for 
Greater Manchester to be a clean, carbon neutral, climate resilient city region with a 

thriving natural environment and circular, zero-waste economy. Following the 
publication of the 5 Year Plan Salford City Council declared a Climate Emergency, 

stating its commitment to the plan and to becoming carbon neutral by 2038. The plan 
sets out the urgent actions all of us need to take over the next five years to achieve 
the aims for this period. 

Salford City Council is seeking to install solar PV at its site in Kenyon Way, Little 
Hulton, a Hydro scheme at Charlestown Weir and solar car ports at Turnpike and 

Swinton Hall Road depots, in order to increase local renewable energy generation 
and increase the flexibility of local energy supply as part of its contribution towards 
Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral city region by 2038.  

ERDF funding has been awarded which will address a gap in funding for the 
proposed investments, to bring forward schemes that would otherwise not be 

deliverable and ensure the City Council is able to generate a surplus across the 
lifecycle of each project.  The project “Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater 
Manchester (UCEGM)” is led by the Energy Systems Catapult, with the consortium 

also including Stockport, Wigan, Rochdale and Manchester Councils. 
 
Hydropower at Charlestown Weir 
 

Salford City Council is seeking to install the hydropower scheme at Charlestown 

Weir on the River Irwell to boost local renewable energy generation and increase the 
flexibility of local energy supply. Planning permission and EA permits for the scheme 

were sought and awarded to Hydrosense in 2019. However, the company were not 
able to take the scheme forward due to economic viability. ERDF funding will 
address a gap in funding for the proposed investment and ensure the Council is able 

to generate a surplus across the project’s lifecycle. 
 

Page 6



The scheme comprises installation of a single Archimedes screw design, 
construction of an engine house, and installation of a fish pass and eel pass.  

 
The total project will cost around £1.5m and attract ERDF funding of around 

£689,000.  
 
It will generate up to 710,000kWh of renewable energy, the equivalent of the power 

required for around 200 homes. Works to install the scheme will take approximately 
6 months when contractors start on site in Summer 2022.  
 
Procurement Route 
 

Following an initial review of frameworks it is thought that the specific nature of the 
required install is not covered in any existing frameworks that we are aware of and 

that an open tender is the most suitable route to procure.  
 
Prior Information Notice 

The Council has recently embarked on a market engagement exercise to inform the 
procurement for this project. A Prior Information Notice was issued on Tuesday 11 th 

January 2022 to alert the market of the upcoming procurement and seeking 
responses from prospective future tenderers on a number of points which will help to 
inform the procurement documents and project team on risks and timescales. The 

PIN closed on Tuesday 25th January and there were three responses from 
contractors which will inform the procurement process.  

Social Value 

The specification provided to tenderers will make clear Salford’s Social Value 
requirements and given the value of this award this will be assessed by the Social 

Value Portal. The scoring for the contract will ensure that social value is at least 
15%. Social Value will be measured and monitored through the Social Value Portal 

throughout the installation. 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 

 Five year environment plan for Greater Manchester 

 Great Eight Priority - Tackling the climate emergency 

 Climate Emergency Declaration 

 

 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

N/A 

 
 

Page 7



 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

 
The programme has a risk register in place and mitigation measures. 

  
It is essential that all procurement and work is carried out within ERDF rules to 
ensure there is no claw back, we will be supported by Manchester City Council’s 

Technical Assistance team to help ensure all necessary rules are followed. 
  

Salford City Council will put in place a procurement plan, to be shared with ESC, and 
preparation sessions will be put in place.  A project wide procurement strategy has 
been prepared. 

  
Programme management and compliance resource to cover finance, reporting, 

compliance requirements, to cover three years of project and closedown period. 
Partner responsibilities with regard to reporting, compliance and audit are set out 
clearly in the partnership agreement and will be monitored regularly by the lead 

partner. Details of processes are included within Programme Handbook and will be 
updated as needed to ensure that consistency and quality of process is applied 

throughout the project to minimise compliance risk. Project performance and 
compliance to be reviewed internally at least twice a year to ensure that operations, 
processes and systems remain on track. 

  
Future survey results and further feasibility work on the scheme could reveal issues 

requiring remediation or additional work or complication, or costs may have changed 
since design and feasibility work was completed. To mitigate this the detailed cost 
breakdown has some risk uncertainty priced in. 

 
 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

See financial comments below.  

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  

 
The terms of any grant funding agreement with ERDF will need to be adhered to in the 
event that there are clawback provisions for failure to comply. Legal Services will 

advise on any terms upon receipt of a copy of the agreement to ensure the Council’s 
interests are protected and any provisions of concern or significant risk are highlighted. 

Any (then) state aid implications have been addressed  
 
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 

execution of works associated with the project, the Council as a ‘contracting authority’  
must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the 

provisions of its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and 
the duties of Best and Social value, or be at risk of challenge from an aggrieved 
provider. ERDF funding agreements usually require compliance with PCR in any 

event. 
 

Page 8



The report sets out that the Council proposes to enter into a compliant procurement 
process using the open procedure to support the delivery of the project (as the nature 

of the project is too specific to be caught by an existing framework arrangement), and 
will advertise the opportunity in accordance with CSO’s and PCR, with the added 

benefit that undertaking a tender exercise in this way will give some comfort to the 
Council in ensuring that value for money is being obtained and tested, with open 
competition maintained. The carrying out of a compliant procurement exercise will 

ensure that the risk of challenge to the final award of the contract to the selected 
contractor is minimal and that any challenge, should it materialise, is unlikely to be 

successful. 

As part of the procurement process, the Council has recently published a Prior 
Information Notice (sometimes referred to as Early Market Engagement Notice or 
Future Opportunity Notice) which sets out its purchasing intentions for the project to 

assist the market with knowledge of the procurement pipeline. PINs signal to the wider 
market that the Council has a specific upcoming commercial need that will require 

support from one or more external suppliers. PCR introduced early market 
engagement now being specifically permitted in the legislation when using PINs. This 
means the Council can talk openly to suppliers about the procurement before the 

tender is released without fear of accusations of unfair bias in the procurement 
process.  

Legal Services has advised previously on the terms of the Partnership Agreement for 

the project “Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester (UCEGM)” referred to in 
the report, which is led by the Energy Systems Catapult, with the consortium also 
including Stockport, Wigan, Rochdale and Manchester Councils. 

 
SCC will need to secure all necessary and appropriate rights and permissions 

(including, where appropriate, acquisition of land) to enable them to access, construct, 
retain and operate the hydro-electric project and the construction / operation of the eel 
pass from  relevant  owners of the weir and land on either the river banks along with 

all necessary and appropriate statutory consents and approvals. There may be delays 
in securing all necessary and appropriate rights and permissions etc. and this needs 

to be factored into the procurement process to avoid having to re-procure the contract. 
 
The Shared Legal Service will provide advice on any of the issues referred to above 

including any relevant documentation to implement the proposals. 
 

 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Gemma Singleton, Senior Accountant  

There is funding available under the Unlocking Clean Energy in GM Programme to 

go out to tender for this project.  

Funding is ERDF grant and Salford match funding through Invest to Save.  

Capital code: D07175 

 

Page 9



 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Heather Stanton, Category 
Manager 

 
We intend to go out to open tender to ensure a fair and transparent process for this 
project.  We have advertised a Prior Information Notice on the Chest to inform the 

market of our intentions and to gain valuable information on the interest this project 
is likely to receive.  This complies with SCC standing orders and the ERDF funding 

guidance. 
 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  

 
N/A 
 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Hayley Nixon 
 
The GM 5 Year Environment Plan commits GM to increasing local renewable energy 

generation by at least 45 MW by 2024 and councils need to be at the forefront of this 
work. The “Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester (UCEGM)” bid could 

generate 15% of the total GM target with this installation generating up to 
710,000kWh of renewable energy, the equivalent of the power required for around 
200 homes. 

 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

N/A 

 
 

CONTACT OFFICER:  
Michael Hemingway, Climate Change Officer 
Hayley Nixon, Commercial Project Manager 

 
 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
 
N/A 

 

Page 10



Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
16th February 2022  

 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to award the contract, for the conversion of a former family centre 
on Wingate Road, Little Hulton into four 1 bedroom apartments, to Schofield and 

Sons Limited. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approve the award of the contract to Schofield and Sons as 

detailed in the table below: 
 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project 

Refurbishment of the family centre, Wingate 
Road, into 4 x 1 bed apartments. 

Name of Successful Contractor  Schofield and Sons Ltd 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 

                             
                             025459259 

 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value (£) £190,037.11  

Contract Duration  3 months 

Contract Start Date  28/02/2022 

Contract End Date  05/05/2022 

Optional Extension Period 1 months 

Optional Extension Period 2 months 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5b



Detail required Answers 
Who will approve each Extension 

Period? 
Procurement Board (extension > £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Konrad Magdzinski   793 2197 

Lead Service Group 

 
Place 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 
Framework Call-Off (Mini Competition) 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2 

Funding Source Capital Programme 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

                                      √ 

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter √ 

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer √ 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
This report seeks approval to award the contract for the conversion of a former family 

centre into 4 x 1 bed apartments.  It will be delivered by one of the councils preferred 
construction partners and will take around 10 weeks to complete. The apartments will 

provide self-contained supported housing to help meet an acute need for additional 
move on accommodation in the city. 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 

 Homelessness Strategy 

 Lead Member for Property and Regeneration 8th November 2021:  Salford’s 

Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme (RSAP) Update. 

 
 

KEY DECISION:  No 

 
 
DETAILS:  
 

1. Background 
 

Homelessness has been increasing in the city since 2012 and the council is currently 
housing 314 people who have slept rough or been at significant risk of rough 
sleeping.  There is an acute need for move on accommodation, particularly for those 

Page 12



who have complex needs.  In response, the council submitted four bids to the Rough 
Sleepers Accommodation Programme (RSAP), for the delivery of new move on 

accommodation in the city.  All four bids were successful and attracted grant of 
£1,591,500 with a requirement of match funding of £1,100,000 from the council’s 

capital programme. A high-level estimate of £183,500 for the Wingate scheme was 
included within the bid. 
 

Planning permission for the scheme was granted on 28 th January 2022.   
 

The tenancies will be allocated and managed by the council’s Supported Tenancy 
service.  Revenue funding has also been obtained through RSAP to deliver the 
ongoing support. 

 
 

This report seeks to approve the appointment of Schofield and Sons Ltd to deliver 
the first 4 units of the RSAP at Wingate Road. This scheme involves the conversion 
of an existing former social care provision into 4 x 1 bed apartments.  
 

2.  The Procurement Process 

A mini competition was advertised via the Council’s Minor Building Works Framework 
Agreement. A 70% Price and 30% Quality Award Criteria were selected on the basis 
that cost was the main consideration of the scheme.  

One submission was received and evaluated. The table below illustrated the outcome 
of the evaluation:  

 

Name of Bidder 

% Price 
score 

Max 70% 

% Quality 
score 

Max 30% 

%Overall 
Score 

100% 

Bidder A 70 30 100 

The Tender Evaluation Team consisted of technical representatives from Capita (who 
are appointed project managers) and officers of the council. 

The final contracted cost for the scheme came in at £190,037.11 exc Vat which has 

been recommended by Capita after they undertook a value engineering process to 
finalise the submitted costs. 

As per the tender submission, the appointed contractor has agreed to deliver the 
scheme within 10 weeks starting from 28th February 2022.  
 

3. Social Value  

The contractor’s ability to deliver additional social value outcomes were assessed as 

part of the selection criteria for getting on the Council’s Minor Building Works   

Page 13



Framework. All potential bidders had previously demonstrated a satisfactory capacity 
to deliver the required social outcomes and wider community benefit. 

The evaluation criteria for this contract included assessment of how the contractor 
would contribute towards the environmental, social and economic wellbeing of the 

area. 

Schofield and Sons Ltd have been operating in Salford for 45 years, with over 85% of 
their employees being Salford residents. They deliver social value in various ways. 

The immediate environment would be enhanced through cutting back and removing 
overgrown foliage to all elevations and power-washing the hardstanding to the rear 

and paths around the building. This would be done free of charge. 

Schofield and Sons have assisted various Salford based community groups and 
events including: Monton Village Association, Salford Community Leisure awards 

event, Cadishead Rhino’s Rugby Club, Boothstown Scout & Cubs and Salford Met’s 
Athletic Club. With all these organisations, and events, either cash donations or free 

labour has been provided. 

Following successfully obtaining works to Salford Schools last Summer Schofield and 
Sons were able to recruit 3 new Site managers, all of whom are Salford residents. This 

new work would enable them to continue the employment of one of the site managers. 

Schofield and Sons pay all their employees a ‘Living Wage’ and have recently received 

accreditation certification with the Living Wage Foundation.   
 
Schofield and Sons are now accredited as a ‘Disability Confident committed 

employer’. The Disability Confident Scheme encourages long-term behavioural 
change. It makes the business case for employing disabled people, ensuring that 

they can fulfil their potential.  

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Housing and Regeneration 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 

The delivery of new homelessness move on accommodation and affordable housing 
helps to address equality outcomes through the provision of good quality, well 

managed and secure housing.  

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low 

 
Risks will be monitored and mitigated through the project group. The main risk is 

achieving spend in accordance with grant funding requirements. Approval of the 
report will ensure the Wingate Road units begin before the end of March 2022. 
 

There are also potential construction risks of rising costs and material shortages. 

 

Page 14



SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 

The cost of this scheme is included within the approved capital programme funded 
from a combination RSAP Grant and council match funding.

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service – Tony Hatton 

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 

execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSOs), failing which a contract 

may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s stipulate that 
where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable 
reason not to do so. 

The report seeks approval for the appointment of Schofield and Sons to undertake the 
conversion of former social care accommodation to support the RSAP as described in 

the report. Schofield and Sons have been appointed via the existing Lot 2 Minor Civils 
Framework following a mini competition exercise. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:   Chris Mee – Strategic Finance 
Manager Ext 0434 

Provision for the council’s contribution is included within the approved capital 
programme following internal financial modelling based on 40 years borrowing with 
the rents covering the cost of borrowing, management and maintenance costs and 

life cycle costs from year 6. The modelling assumed that rents would increase by 
CPI + 1%.   Revenue funding has also been obtained through RSAP to deliver 

ongoing support.  

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244 

 
The minor works framework Lot 2 was utilised for the procurement of the project.  All 

companies on Lot 2 were invited to tender but only one returned a compliant bid.  
The return was accepted and on budget therefore this complies with the contractual 
standing orders and the procurement contract regulations. 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:   
 

These implications are addressed in other reports and processes. 
 

 

 

Page 15



 

 

 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  
 
Place, People and Service Reform have all been engaged. 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Konrad Magdzinski, Principal Officer Development 

 
TELEPHONE NUMBER:  0161 793 2197

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
 

Walkden North 
 
 

 
 

Page 16



 Sample A – going out to tender 

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
16th February 2022 

 

 
 

TITLE: Approval to go out to open competition for the Street Lighting Cyclic 
Maintenance contract. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That Procurement Board grant authority for the Street Lighting Cyclic Maintenance 

contract to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules 
through an open tender process. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to request approval to go out competition for the 
delivery of the above-mentioned service. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

 
N/A 

 
 
KEY DECISION: Not at this stage  

 
 
DETAILS:  

 
Salford City Council is seeking to appoint a Street Lighting cyclic maintenance 

service provider to deliver essential reactive and planned street lighting maintenance 
works for the Technical Highways Services team.  Since the transition from the 
Urban Vision partnerships agreement, there is now a need to have in place a legally 

compliant and properly procured contractual agreement with a third-party contractor 
to deliver these services. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5c



 Sample A – going out to tender 

 
It is intended to appoint a single contractor to deliver this service, this includes the 

inspection, reporting, cleaning and routine maintenance of the street lighting 
network, that consists of approximately 30,000 street lighting columns, which SCC is 

responsible for.  This service will run in tandem with the in-house Street Lighting 
team based at Swinton Hall Road depot, who deliver the vast majority of any 
emergency or reactive repair and maintenance. 

 
The maintenance schedule is split into a 6-year cycle based on historically defined 

zones across the city regions.  The yearly funding allocation is used to maintain as 
much of the asset as possible with the monies available.  Based on previous years 
spend and current budget levels, the value of the tender should be estimated at 

£80,000 per annum and £320,000 for the potential duration of the award.  Due to a 
lack of in-house technical capability and resources at this time and the absence of a 

contract to award this work, there is currently a back-log of maintenance work.  It is 
hoped that through awarding this contract any backlog of maintenance activity can 
be addressed in year one, and the forward programme can remain on track. 

 
Approval to go out to competition for the provision of Street Lighting contract will 

need to be secured at the next available Procurement Board following the 
procurement process. An open tender opportunity will subsequently be advertised on 
the Chest with team seeking to award the contract to the successful bidder for a 

period of 2 year + 1 +1 year subject to annual review. 
 

Social Value 

The specification provided to tenderers will make clear Salford’s Social Value 
requirements and given the value of this award this will be assessed by the Social 

Value Portal. The scoring for the contract will ensure that social value is at least 
15%. Social Value will be measured and monitored through the Social Value Portal 

throughout the installation.

 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Salford 2025, a Modern Global City. 

Transport in Salford 2025 

 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 

There are no equality impacts arising as a consequence of this report.

 
 

 

Page 18



 Sample A – going out to tender 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

If this contract does not go out to tender, then Technical Services will be unable to 

use the allocated funds to maintain and keep in safe working order the street lighting 
assets within Salford City Council’s responsibility. 

 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

 
Highways Annual Revenue Budget 2021/22 to 2025/26 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Tony Hatton. 

 
The Highways Act 1980 Section 97 empowers a Highway Authority to provide lighting 

for a highway under its jurisdiction but does not place a statutory duty to provide 
lighting. There is however a clear duty to warn by means of lighting or otherwise of 
any obstructions or dangers that have been created. 

 
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 

execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 

value, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge.  
 

The report sets out that the Council proposes to enter into a compliant procurement 
process to appoint a Street Lighting Cyclic Maintenance provider. The report sets out 
that the opportunity should be advertised in accordance with CSO’s and PCR, with the 

added benefit that undertaking a tender exercise in this way will give some comfort to 
the Council in ensuring that value for money is being obtained and tested, with open 

competition maintained. The carrying out of a compliant procurement exercise will 
ensure that the risk of challenge to the final award of the contract to the selected 
provider is minimal and that any challenge, should it materialise, is unlikely to be 

successful. 
 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Alison Woods, Senior Accountant 

 
Date: 3rd February 2022 

There are approved Highways revenue budgets within the Place service group, for 
the 2021/22 financial year and beyond, to fund the aforementioned contract award 
for Street Lighting cyclical maintenance. 

 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  
 

Page 19



 Sample A – going out to tender 

Supplied by: Daniel Cunliffe, Procurement Officer 0161 686 6249 
As the value is £80,000 per annum and a potential £320,000 contract value, if the 

extensions are utilised. A full FTS open tender will be required in order to fulfil the 
councils contractual standing orders.  

 

 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  
 

N/A 
 

 
 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Hayley Nixon 

 
The Council has gone through a major programme of switching to LED lighting, 
which is much more energy efficient, and this contract will support the maintenance 

and operation of these more efficient street lighting assets. 
 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

N/A 

 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Paul Jackson, Head of Highways Construction Service, 

paul.jackson@salford.gov.uk  
 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 07812 781562 

 
 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
 

All

 

Page 20

mailto:paul.jackson@salford.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 26th January 2022
	5a Request for Approval to Go Out to Tender - Installation of Hydropower Scheme at Charlestown Weir on the River Irwell as Part of the Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester Project - Harriet Harper
	5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme - Conversion of a Former Family Centre on Wingate Road, Little Hulton into Four 1 Bedroom Apartments - Konrad Magdzinski
	5c Request for Approval to Go Out to Tender - Street Lighting Routine Cyclic Maintenance Contract - Paul Jackson

